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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

JUNE 25, 2018 

DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2018-0232 

1915 W. 39TH STREET 

 

PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1935 house. 

 

ARCHITECTURE 

One-story, rectangular-plan, front-gabled wood-frame house built in the Craftsman style. 

The house is clad in wood lap siding and has a projecting entry porch and paired wood-sash 

windows. 

 

RESEARCH 

The house at 1915 W. 39th Street was built ca. 1935 by Mrs. Noyes D. Smith. Gault and 

Willie Johnson were the first residents; they owned and occupied the house from 1935 until 

about 1941, then again between about 1948 and 1952. Gault worked at the State Highway 

Department in a variety of positions, including tester and administrative aide; Willie 

worked as a saleswoman at the E. M. Scarbrough & Sons department store. Clyde and 

Susie Rudasill moved into the house in the mid-1950s and remained there until the mid-

1970s. Clyde worked for many years at the State Game, Fish & Oyster Division and rose to 

the Assistant Executive Secretary at the Texas Parks and Wildlife Commission. Robert Q. 

Phillips, Jr. was the next long-term resident; he occupied the house from 1977 until at least 

1992. 

 

STAFF COMMENTS 

The house does not appear to meet the criteria for designation as a historic landmark. 

 

Designation Criteria—Historic Landmark 
1) The house is more than 50 years old, having been constructed ca. 1935. 

2) The house retains a high degree of integrity. 

3) Properties must meet two historic designation criteria for landmark designation. 

The property does not appear to demonstrate significance according to any of the 

criteria (City of Austin Land Development Code, Section 25-2-352). 

a. Architecture. The house is built in the Craftsman style and does not appear 

to possess architectural distinction within this style. 

b. Historical association. Gault and Willie Johnson lived in the property for 

approximately ten years, while Clyde and Susie Rudasill lived there for 

approximately twenty years. There do not appear to be historically significant 

associations. 

c. Archaeology. The property was not evaluated for its potential to yield 

significant data concerning the human history or prehistory of the region. 

d. Community value. The property does not appear to possess a unique location, 

physical characteristic, or significant feature that contributes to the 

character, image, or cultural identity of the community, Austin, or Texas. 

e. Landscape feature. The property is not a significant natural or designed 

landscape with artistic, aesthetic, cultural, or historical value to the city. 
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STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Encourage rehabilitation and adaptive reuse of the building. If the Commission votes to 

release the permit, then staff recommends relocation over demolition, and completion of a 

City of Austin Documentation Package, consisting of photographs of all elevations, a 

dimensioned sketch plan, and a narrative history, for archiving at the Austin History 

Center. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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PROPERTY INFORMATION 

Photos 

 
Primary (north) façade and east elevation of 1915 W. 39th Street. 
 

 
Detail view of primary façade. 
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Occupancy History 

City directory research, Austin History Center 

By Historic Preservation Office staff 

June 2018 

 

1932-33 Address not listed 

 

1935-41 Gault and Willie E. Johnson, owners [Johnson Gault] 

 Gault worked as a tester (1935) and laboratory assistant (1937-41), both at the 

State Highway Department. Willie worked as a saleswoman at E. M. Scarbrough 

& Sons. 

 

1944-45 Owen and Joyce E. Crenshaw and child 

Owen served in the Army; Joyce worked as a stenographer at the State 

Department of Public Safety. 

 

1949-52 G. Gault and Etta W. Johnson, owners [Johnson Gault] 

 Chief clerk (1949) and administrative aide (1952), both at the State Highway 

Department 

 

1955-68 Clyde R. and Susie E. Rudasill, owners 

 Salesman, Henderson’s Refrigerator (1955). No occupation listed in 1959 or 1962; 

retired in 1968. 

 

1977-92 Robert Q. Phillips, Jr., owner 

 Serviceman, IBM (1977); retired (1985-92) 

 

 

Biographical Research 

Johnson Gullette Gault was born in 1911 in Austin. His father Benjamin “Maney” Gault 

was a Texas Ranger who played a role in capturing Bonnie and Clyde. Except for one leave 

to serve in the Army Corps of Engineers and the Air Force during World War II, Johnson 

worked in the Texas Highway Department for 45 years, serving variously as a tester, 

laboratory assistant, chief clerk, and administrative aide. He was active in the Masonic 

order and the Boy Scouts. Johnson Gault died in 1997 in Austin. 
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“Town Talk” short about Johnson and Manny Gault, The Austin Statesman, 12/26/1945. 
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Obituary for Johnson Gault, Austin American-Statesman, 4/9/1997. 

 

Willie Etta Gault (nee Allen) was born in 1914 in Texas to a farming family and grew up in 

Caldwell County. She married Johnson Gault between 1930 and 1933; they had one child. 

At least between 1935 and 1941, Willie worked as a saleswoman at the E. M. Scarbrough & 

Sons department store. She died in 1995 in Travis County. 

 

Clyde Robert Rudasill was born in 1888 in Bartlett, Texas (Williamson County). The 1910 

and 1920 censuses record his occupation as dry goods salesman and merchant, respectively. 

He moved to Austin in the late 1920s and worked as the director of the State Game, Fish & 

Oyster Division’s (later the Texas Parks and Wildlife Commission) sand, shell, and gravel 

operations. He was promoted to Assistant Executive Secretary of the Commission before 

retiring in 1943. In 1955, he was working as a refrigerator salesman. He died in 1971 in 

Austin. 
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Obituary for Clyde Rudasill, The Austin Statesman, 12/21/1971. 

 

Susie Elizabeth Rudasill (nee Chapman) was born in 1883 in Tennessee to a farming 

family. She moved to Texas between 1900 and 1910 and married Clyde Rudasill in 1912 in 

Williamson County. The Rudasills gained some measure of local fame for their hydrangeas, 

as noted in a 1946 Austin American article on plant care. Susie Rudasill died in 1977 in 

San Antonio. 

 

Robert Q. Phillips, Jr. occupied the property for at least 15 years. However, since his tenure 

began after the historic period ended (50 years ago, in 1968), no biographical research was 

completed. 
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Building Permits 

 
Water tap permit issued to Mrs. Noyes D. Smith, 1/18/1935. 
 
 

 
Sewer permit issued to Mrs. Noyes D. Smith, 1/5/1935. 
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Building permit issued to Johnson Gault to repair residence, 9/27/1948. Also includes note regarding 
permit issued to Robert J. Quitman to construct a frame addition to residence, 2/13/1975 (see 
following image). 
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Building permit issued to Robert J. Quitman for frame addition, 2/14/1975. 
 


